
For requests for further information
Contact:  Cherry Foreman
Tel:  01270 686463
E-Mail: cherry foreman@cheshireeast.gov.uk with any apologies

Cabinet Member for Regeneration and 
Assets
Agenda

Date: Monday, 5th October, 2015
Time: 11.00 am
Venue: Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road, 

Sandbach CW11 1HZ

1. Apologies for Absence  

2. Declarations of Interest  

To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable pecuniary and 
non-pecuniary interests in any item on the agenda.

3. Public Speaking Time/Open Session  

In accordance with Procedure Rules Nos.11 and 35 a period of 10 minutes is allocated for 
members of the public to address the meeting on any matter relevant to the work of the body 
in question.  Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 minutes but the 
Chairman or person presiding will decide how the period of time allocated for public speaking 
will be apportioned where there are a number of speakers. Members of the public are not 
required to give notice to use this facility. However, as a matter of courtesy, a period of 24 
hours’ notice is encouraged.

Members of the public wishing to ask a question at the meeting should provide at least three 
clear working days’ notice in writing and should include the question with that notice. This will 
enable an informed answer to be given.

4. Sale of Crewe Swimming Pool, Flag Lane, Crewe  (Pages 1 - 6)

To consider the disposal of this property.





CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL
REPORT TO PORTFOLIO HOLDER – REGENERATION AND ASSETS

Report of: Executive Director of Economic Growth and Prosperity
Subject/Title: Sale of Crewe Swimming Pool, Flag Lane, Crewe
Date of Meeting:  5th October 2015
Portfolio Holder:  Councillor Don Stockton - Regeneration and Assets 
Portfolio Holder

                                                                

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 The purpose of this report is seeking approval to declare the property 
known as Crewe Swimming Pool surplus to the requirements of 
Cheshire East Council and to dispose of the property on the open 
market by the most appropriate method of sale, instruct legal services 
and proceed to legal completion. 

2.0 Recommendation

2.1 That the Council declare the property surplus to requirements and 
dispose of the property on the open market by sale by private treaty on 
terms and conditions to be agreed by the Assets Manager and Head of 
Legal Services.

2.2 Further to 2.1 to seek the necessary approval to instruct Legal Services 
to prepare the contract documentation and proceed to legal completion 
on terms and conditions to be agreed by the Assets Manager and Head 
of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer.

3.0 Reasons for Recommendation

3.1 The property is included within the Council’s disposals programme with 
an anticipated completion of sale in the 2016/17 financial year and the 
sale of the property will make a contribution towards the Council’s 
current 3 year disposals target.

3.2 The existing swimming pool at Flag Lane will be surplus to requirements 
once the new Crewe Lifestyle Centre is complete and open for business 
in 2016 and once the Flag Lane site is vacated the Council will be left 
with an empty asset and incur holding costs and liabilities.

3.3 The Council are looking at reducing its expenditure on its surplus 
assets; therefore in allowing the early marketing of this property and 
proceeding with an acceptable offer (if received)will enable the Council 
to eliminate or reduce the high holding costs associated with a building 
of this size.



3.4 In considering the land surplus to requirements and suitable for disposal 
it has been determined that:
a) the property will make no contribution to the delivery of the Council’s 
services, strategic or corporate objectives
(b) the income being generated from the site will reduce to zero in the 
immediate future and an alternative site, as indicated, which will be 
more cost effective in delivering the service
(c) It has no potential for strategic or regeneration/ development 
purposes in the near future
(d) it will not contribute to the provision of a sustainable pattern of 
development(e)  it makes no contribution to protecting or enhancing the 
natural, built and historic environment, including making no contribution 
to helping improve biodiversity.
(f) alternative provision of equivalent community benefit is being made in 
the locality, and to continue the user would result in an excess of 
provision for sport, recreation or leisure.
(g) the asset can be better utilised for regeneration of the area. 

4.0 Wards Affected

4.1 Crewe West

5.0 Local Ward Members 

5.1 Councillors Jill Rhodes and Brian Roberts

6.0 Policy Implications

6.1 There are no perceived policy implications.

7.0 Implications for Rural Communities

7.1 There are no implications for rural communities.

8.0 Financial Implications 

8.1 A sale of the property will result in the Council reducing its holding 
costs for the property and receiving a capital receipt. The sale is likely 
to be subject to any buyer obtaining planning permission and therefore 
likely to complete within the 2016/17 financial year.

9.0 Legal Implications 

Disposals will be subject to means of accountability to include best 
value being obtained. State Aid considerations may fall to be 
considered, and in some transactions the complexity may involve 
procurement legislation, application of the contract procedure rules, 
and for due diligence information/material, depending on each 



particular set of circumstances. When the method of disposal has been 
determined and terms of sale agreed specific tailored advice will be 
given on how to manage and achieve the disposal within legal 
constraints.

As this could be a sale at less than best value it should be noted that 
generally the Council is permitted to dispose of its land by s1 of The 
Localism Act 2011 and s123 of the Local Government Act 1972.  S123 
of the Local Government Act 1972 provides that a local authority may 
dispose of land in any manner they see fit subject to it obtaining the 
best price reasonably obtainable for the transaction.

The Council has no power to dispose of the property unless it secures 
the best consideration reasonably obtainable unless it has Secretary of 
State consent or if it can rely on the General Disposal Consent 2003.

If the Council intends to rely on the General Disposal Consent 2003 
then assuming that the Council is satisfied that the well being objective 
is met, the difference between the unrestricted value of the interest to be 
disposed of and the consideration accepted would have to be less than 
£2 million.  This will particularly need to be considered should the price 
offered be less than best consideration due to any conditions attached 
to the sale of the property.

Notwithstanding the above powers the Council has a fiduciary duty to 
the taxpayers and must fulfil this duty in a way which is accountable to 
local people.

10.0 Risk Management 

10.1 There are no risk management issues associated with the proposed 
disposal. 

11.0 Background 

11.1 The site extends to approximately 1.154 acres and is situated within a 
residential area.

11.2 The property comprises of a public swimming pool and gymnasium, on 
a site of approximately 0.467 ha (1.154 acres). It is located 
approximately 0.5 miles from Crewe town centre in a relatively low 
value residential area. 

11.3 Situated immediately to the south, are a semi-dilapidated basketball 
court and Valley Park, which provides a children’s play area and an 
area of public open space. This land and facility will remain within the 
Council’s ownership and management. This open space land is not 
affected by the proposed disposal and is not at this time regarded as 
surplus to requirements.



11.4 Whilst the swimming pool remains operational at present, it is due to 
close in 2016 when the new Crewe Lifestyle Centre opens, which will 
provide a new swimming pool and gymnasium facilities.

11.5 The main section of the site is not allocated for any specific use under 
the current Crewe and Nantwich Local Plan and the Emerging Local 
Plan. Valley Park and the basketball court are both designated as 
Informal Open Space within a Hazardous Installation Consultation 
Zone and contain a water course and culverted stream. These areas 
will be retained by the Council for their existing use and provision of 
open space and community areas.  

11.6 Any planning consent for redevelopment of the site could involve the 
developer contributing to an upgrade to the adjacent community areas, 
however, this would be dealt with as part of the planning process for 
the site.

11.8 The Council’s planning department may impose a condition that the 
future use retains the front façade of the building (The Building was 
given locally Listed Status in October 2010).  This would result in a 
condition being imposed upon any buyer of the property and is 
therefore likely to reduce the value of the property and result in a sale 
at ‘less than best consideration’.  The potential reduction in value as a 
result of this condition will be quantified following the marketing process 
once offers are received with the sums documented at this time.  

11.9 Offers will be assessed using a decision making matrix under the 
following criteria (in no particular order): price offered, likelihood of 
proposed development obtaining planning consent, retention of façade, 
evidence of finance, and previous experience of similar development of 
the purchaser.

11.3 There is a lease is in place in relation to the property to Everybody 
Sport & Recreation (ESAR) for the purpose of providing the leisure 
service for the Council; however it is intended that the lease will be 
surrendered prior to disposal of the property to allow for vacant 
possession on completion of a sale. A separate paper has been 
prepared in relation to the lease surrender.

12.0 Access to Information

         The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by 
contacting the report writer



44.5m

46.3m

LB

FB

Bowling Green

Playground

159

32

124

142

12

38

116

138

19

130

147

El Sub Sta

102

PH

98

33

104

25

171

4

Baths

143

Swimming

47.5m

45.1m

T
C

B

F
L A

G
 L

A
N

E

LEWIS STREET

Recreation Ground

104

9

115

Cottages
106

131

South View

108

96

Marshall

15

108

76

134

83

120

97

93

82

146

86 88

30

129

94

64

8 1

118
122

66

1a

16

104

20

7

6
2

1 to 6

Lewis Court

PH

0m 10m 20m 30m

Ordnance Survey  © Crown Copyright 2015. All rights reserved. 
Licence number 100022432. Plotted Scale -  1:1250




	Agenda
	4 Sale of Crewe Swimming Pool, Flag Lane, Crewe
	Site Plan - Crewe Swimming Pool


